1988

Jan Lyle Jensen v. Mary Ann Jensen : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

THIS IS A DIVORCE CASE STEMING FROM A MARRIAGE IN THE STATE
OF WASHINGTON, CITY OF RENTON, 1968. THE PARTIES HAVE 5 CHILDREN
AS A RESULT OF THIS MARRIAGE, THO SINCE THE RECENT RULING OF THE
LOWER COURT, (2 TWO) HAVE SINCE BEEN REMOVED FROM THE PLAINTIFFS
HOME.

I

A) APPELLANT HAS SUBMITTED NUMEROUS MOTIONS BEFORE THE COURT PERTAINING TO THE CASE, HOWEVER THE COURT RULED ON ONLY ONE OF THESE MOTIONS, LEAVING THE MOST IMPORTANT OF THE MOTIONS UNDECIDED.

B) THE COURT WAS PREJUDICED AGAINST THE APPELLANT AND REFUSED THE APPELLANTS MOTIONS.

C) THE APPELLANT IS INCARCERATED IN THE WASHINGTON PENAL SYSTEM, AND THEREFORE CANNOT PROCURE LEGAL COUNCIL TO REPRESENT HIS INTERESTS IN THE IMMEDIATE CASE.

D) THE COURT INFORMED THE APPELLANT THAT THE CASE WAS TO BE SET FOR TRIAL, HOWEVER THE COURT NEVER INFORMED THE APPELLANT OF THAT DATE, AND PROCEEDED WITH OUT INFORMING THE APPELLANT WHEN THE TRIAL WOULD BE.

II

A) APPELLANT AWAITED RULING ON MOTIONS PRESENTED BEFORE THE COURT BEFORE FILING AN ANSWER TO THE DIVORCE COMPLAINT, THEREFORE THE APPELLANT REQUESTS THIS COURT TO CONSIDER THE FACTS IN THIS CASE.

B) SINCE THIS DECREE HAS BEEN ENTERED, THE RESPONDENT HAS TRAVELED TO THE PROPERTY OF THE APPELLANTS PARENTS AND REMOVED CERTAIN PROPERTY BELONGING TO THE PARENTS WITH OUT PERMISSION (THEFT) AND PROPERTY BELONGING TO APPELLANT, SAID PROPERTY AWARDED TO APPELLANT IN THE DECREE OF DIVORCE DECREE. (NOTE PAGE 2 ITEM 9 OF DIVORCE DECREE.

C) ITEMS REMOVED SPECIFICALLY WHICH WERE IN THE VEHICLES OF THE APPELLANT, AND SPECIFICALLY PART OF THE PROPERTY AWARDED TO THE APPELLANT ARE THE FOLLOWING:

- 1 CHAIN SAW PURCHASED BY THE COUPLE IN 1979 AT POCA TELLO IDAHO, AT CHUBBUCK LUMBER SUPPLY CO. FOR \$395.00
- 2 TELEVISION SET (SMALL 13") WHICH APPELLANT PURCHASED FROM HIS EARNINGS WHILE IN THE PRISON SYSTEM IN 1986.
- 3 RADIO CASSETTE (PORTABLE) PURCHASED IN THE YEAR 1986 WHILE IN PRISON FOR \$77.10
- 4 WRIST WATCH OWNED BY THE APPELLANT (SEIKO) PURCHASED BY THE COUPLE IN 1979 AT A JEWELERY STORE IN POCA TELLO IDAHO FOR \$135.
- 5 MISCELLANEOUS TOOLS CONSISTING OF ELECTRIC DRILLS, AND IMPACT WRENCHES THAT WERE IN THE POSESSION OF APPELLANT ON THE PROPERTY OF APPELLANTS PARENTS, AND REMOVED BY

RESPONDENT/PLAINTIFF AFTER THE DIVORCE DECREE WAS AWARDED.

- 6 IN THE PAST MONTH THE COUPLES CHILD, CHANTELE JENSEN HAS LEFT THE HOME(RUN AWAY) AND HAS NOT BEEN HEARD FROM SINCE THAT TIME.
- 7 THE COURT HAS REMOVED FROM THE RESPONDENT/PLAINTIFF THE OLDEST SON OF THE TWO PARTIES BECAUSE SHE WAS NOT ABLE TO CONTROL HIM. THE OLDEST SON BEING JEREMY LYLE JENSEN.

III

APPELLANT HAS RECEIVED CORRESPONDENCE FROM THE COUPLES SON SINCE HIS REMOVAL FROM THE RESPONDENT/PLAINTIFF'S HOME TELLING OF THE NUMEROUS GOINGS ON IN THE HOME THAT GIVES RISE TO THE ABILITY OF THE RESPONDENT/PLAINTIFF'S ABILITY TO TAKE CARE OF THE CHILDREN PROPERLY, AND HER PHYSICAL AND MENTAL RESPONSIBILITY IS SUSPECT BY THE APPELLANT.

THE DAUGHTER HAS PHONED THE RESPONDENT/PLAINTIFF AND TOLD HER THAT " YOU ARE THE WORSE MOTHER IN THE WORLD, I HATE YOU "!

THIS INFORMATION GIVES SERIOUS CONCERN TO THE ABILITY OF THE PLAINTIFF'S CONTINUED CONTROL OVER THE CHILDREN. THE APPELLANT FEELS THERE IS NOT THE HARMONY AND LOVE IN THE HOME TO CARE FOR THE CHILDREN.

IV

THERE IS A BOAT BELONGING TO THE COUPLE THAT HAS NOT BEEN LISTED ON THE COMMUNITY PROPERTY, AND NUMEROUS OTHER PROPERTY THAT IS SECRETED AT THE RESPONDENT/PLAINTIFFS PARENTS HOME THAT HAS BEEN PART OF THE COMMUNITY PROPERTY FOR OVER 15 YEARS. THIS PROPERTY IS SECRETED AWAY IN ORDER THAT THE RESPONDENT/PLAINTIFF MIGHT HAVE THIS OUT FROM THE SETTLEMENT IN THIS DIVORCE. (NOTE MOTION FOR SHOW CAUSE ORDER) THERE IS OTHER COMMUNITY PROPERTY THAT IS NOT LISTED, AND THAT IS "HIDDEN" FROM THE APPELLANT AND THIS COURT.

V

THE BUICK RIVIERA IS IN POOR CONDITION, HAS NOT BEEN OPERATED IN OVER 15 YEARS, AND CANNOT BE REPAIRED AS THERE ARE NO LONGER PARTS AVAILABLE FOR THIS MODEL, THEREFORE THE APPELLANT RECEIVED AN AUTOMOBILE THAT IS THE SAME AS A WRECK AS HIS MEANS OF TRANSPORTATION, WHILE THE RESPONDANT WAS GIVEN THE ONLY AUTOMOBILE THAT

CAN BE USED, THIS AUTOMOBILE APPELLANT GAVE TO RESPONDENT LAST SUMMER. THE PICKUP ALSO BEING IN BAD REPAIR, THO CAN BE REPAIRED TO USE AS TRANSPORTATION.

VI

THE APPELLANT RECEIVED THE FINAL DECREE OF DIVORCE FROM THE RESPONDANT'S ATTORNEY, HOWEVER THEY WERE NEVER SIGNED BY THE JUDGE OF THE COURT, THUS MAKING THEM NULL AND VOID.

THEREFORE THIS APPELLANT FEELS THAT THIS DIVORCE ACTION IS FLAWED FROM THE BEGINNING, 1. THE RESPONDANT LIED, AND MANIPULATED THE COURT TO HER BENEFIT, 2. THE COURT DID NOT SIGN THE DIVORCE FIN-DECREE, 3. THERE HAVE BEEN MATERIAL CHANGES, NAMELY THE DAUGHTER AND ONE SON HAS BEEN REMOVED FROM THE JURISDICTION OF THE COURT, 4. THE APPELLANT WAS NOT INFORMED OF THE COURT DATE BY THE COURT AND THUS PREVENTING HIM FROM PRESENTING DOCUMENTS TO REFUTE THE RESPONDANTS ALLEGATIONS, 5. APPELLANT WAS NOT REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL , NOR ABLE TO APPEAR FOR THE HEARING, 6. THERE WERE NUMEROUS ERRORS ON BEHALF OF THE COURT, 7. MOTIONS WERE NOT RULED UPON, AND OTHER ISSUES TO BE DISPOSED OF BEFORE THIS COULD HAVE BEEN RULED UPON.

CONCLUSIONS RECOMMENDED

IT IS FELT THAT GIVEN THE FACTS IN THIS DIVORCE CASE THAT THE COURT ERRORED, AND DID NOT ALLOW THE APPELLANT THE OPPORTUNITY TO PRESENT ARGUEMENTS, DID NOT RULE ON HIS MOTIONS, GIVING THE FALSE BELIEF THAT THIS WOULD BE DONE BEFORE SETTING ON THE CALENDAR, FAILED TO INFORM APPELLANT OF THE DATE FOR HEARING, AND DIDN'T INFORM APPELLANT OF HIS LEGAL REMEDIES, AND FAILED TO SIGN THE FINAL DECREE OF DIVORCE.

GIVEN THESE FACTS, ALONG WITH ALL OTHERS, THE APPELLANT REQUESTS THIS COURT TO OVERTURN THIS CASE, AND RESET FOR NEW TRIAL, AND FOLLOW THE LAW.

IN THE EVENT THAT THIS CANNOT BE ACCOMPLISHED, APPELLANT SEEKS RELIEF IN THIS COURT FROM THIS DIVORCE BY CHANGING THE FINAL DECREE, BY ALLOWING RELIEF SOUGHT.

1. ALLOW THE APPELLANT THE INTERNATIONAL PICKUP.
2. START CHILD SUPPORT 90 DAYS FOLLOWING THE RELEASE OF APPELLANT FROM PRISON.
3. REMOVE THE ALIMONY FROM THE CONDITIONS.
4. RETURN THE PROPERTY AT ISSUE TO APPELLANT.
5. REMOVE THE TWO CHILDREN THAT HAVE LEFT THE HOME FROM OBLIGATIONS OF CHILD SUPPORT, AND OTHER STIPUALTIONS.
6. RETURN THE CHAIN SAW, TV, RADIO, AND OTHER TOOLS THAT HAVE BEEN REMOVED BY THE RESPONDANT.

PAGE 7