1988

Mary Ann Jensen v. Jay Lyle Jensen : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This an appeal by Appellant from a Decree of Divorce. Pursuant to Rule 10 of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals, Respondent prays this appeal be dismissed on the basis that the Court has no jurisdiction due to the fact that according to the court file herein on December 23, 1987, in the lower court, Appellant filed a motion entitled "Motion Of Response And Set Aside Decision". Said motion was never served on Respondent and therefore, no ruling on the same has been made by the lower court.

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

Respondent brought her action for divorce against the Appellant. Appellant was properly served with a copy of Respondent's Complaint, but never filed an Answer to Respondent's complaint. The time allowed by law for answering the Complaint expired, Appellant's default was entered, and Respondent was granted a divorce as prayed for in her complaint.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

Whether or not the Appellant's default and the subsequent decree of divorce were properly entered by the lower court.

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES AND RULES

Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) Section 78-27-26, and Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 5(a) and (b), 12(a), 55(a) and (b)(2), and 58A(d).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

NATURE OF THE CASE

Respondent brought her action for divorce against the Appellant. Appellant was properly served with a copy of Respondent's Complaint, but never filed an Answer to Respondent's complaint. The time allowed by law for answering the Complaint expired, Appellant's default was entered, and Respondent was granted a divorce as prayed for in her complaint. Although somewhat unclear from the brief of the Appellant, Appellant now seems to be requesting a new trial but would really like modification of the Decree of Divorce under the terms set forth in his brief filed herein.

COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

See Statement of Facts below.

DISPOSITION OF TRIAL COURT

Respondent was granted a default divorce based upon her complaint.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Respondent filed her complaint for divorce herein with the same having been served on Appellant on September 16, 1987 in the State of Washington (Return of Service in Cache County District Court file Civil No. 26000). Copy of Summons and Complaint attached in Addendum hereto.

On September 28, 1987, Appellant filed a Petition to Hold, and Respondent filed her Notice of Readiness for Trial and Response to Appellant's Petition to Hold on September 29, 1987.

with a copy of the same being mailed to Appellant on the same day. Appellant then filed on October 15, 1987 a Response of Respondent's Readiness for Trial and Motion to Refuse of Defense. On October 26, 1987, Respondent made a request for decision on said Petition to Hold. In a Memorandum dated November 4, 1987, the Court denied Appellants Petition to Hold and stated that there was not reason for delay -- the matter should be set for trial.

Meanwhile Appellant filed on Oct 20, 1987 an Order to Show Cause Order Re: Property and Affidavit. The same was never signed by the Court, but a copy was mailed to Respondent's attorney on November 2, 1987. Respondent filed a Motion to Quash Service to require personal service.

Appellant then filed a motion for Indigent Filing as Necessary and Appoint Counsel on November 2, 1987 and a motion for Restraint on November 4, 1987. Respondent's response was filed on November 6, 1987 with a copy of the same having been mailed to Appellant on November 4, 1987. On November 16, 1987, the Court in a memorandum decision ruled on said motion by granting Appellant the right to file papers without fee, denied appointment of counsel and motion of restraint. **The Court further ordered that the statutory provision and rules of practice time limits for responsive pleading would be adhered to.** Respondent's counsel was ordered to prepare the order. The memorandum decision was mailed to both parties on November 16, 1987. Copy of memorandum decision dated November 16, 1988

attached in Addendum hereto. Then the order was prepared and mailed to the Appellant on November 30, 1987. The order was signed by the Court on December 1, 1987.

On December 15, 1987 at the request of Respondent's counsel, Appellant's default was entered and a divorce was granted under the terms of the divorce complaint previously served on the Appellant. Copies of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as well as the Decree were mailed to the Appellant along with a Notice of Entry of Judgment on December 15, 1987.

Appellant never filed an answer to Respondent's complaint. The next document filed by Appellant was an appeal on December 23, 1987 along with a Motion of Response and Set Aside. Neither of which were mailed to Respondent. On January 12, 1988, Appellant filed a Notice of Appeal with the Court and Amendment to Notice of Appeal. The Notice of Appeal was mailed to Respondent's attorney on January 6, 1988.

All of the above date references are obtained from Cache County District Court file case No. 26000.

Appellant has not requested a transcript of the lower court proceedings nor filed his notice that the same will not be requested pursuant to Rule 11(e)(1) of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals. Appellant has not done so even though he has been instructed on numerous occasions by this court on how to obtain a transcript. (See letter from Court of Appeals Court Clerk dated January 22, 1988, letter from Court of Appeals Court

Counsel dated February 10, 1988, and Order on Pending Motion: dated February 26, 1988)

ARGUMENT

I. The Court ruled on Appellant's motion: presented prior to entry of the default.

From the court file herein the following appears:

(1) Appellant was personally served with a summons and a copy of Respondent's Complaint on September 16, 1987 in the State of Washington.

(2) On September 28, 1987, Appellant filed a Petition to Hold. Appellant then filed on October 15, 1987 a Response of Respondent's Readiness for Trial and Motion to Refuse of Defense. In a Memorandum dated November 4, 1987, the Court denied Appellant's Petition to Hold and stated that there was no reason for delay.

(3) Appellant then filed a motion for Indigent Filing as Necessary and Appoint Counsel on November 2, 1987 and a Motion for Restraint on November 4, 1987.

(4) A decision was rendered on Appellant's last petition and motion prior to entry of his default and the Divorce Decree in a memorandum decision dated November 16, 1987. The Court ruled that the statutory provision and rules of practice time limits for responsive pleading would be adhered to. An order on said memorandum decision entitled "Order on Defendant's Motion for Indigent Filing and Appoint Counsel, and Motion for Restraint" was signed by the lower court on December 1, 1987. A

copy of the former were mailed to Defendant on or about November 16, 1987, and a copy of the latter were mailed to Defendant on November 30, 1987.

(5) Appellant never filed an answer to Respondent's Complaint.

(6) On December 15, 1988, Appellant's default was entered and a default hearing held. Respondent was awarded Decree of Divorce based upon her complaint. Notice of Entry of the Judgment along with the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and Decree of Divorce were mailed to Appellant on December 15, 1987.

II. The Court was not prejudiced against appellant in refusing motions.

Appellant alleges that the lower court was prejudiced against him in refusing motions yet he gives no specifics as to the allegation of prejudice. From a review of the court file herein, it seems that the lower court went out of its way to accommodate Appellant in acting as his own counsel. The lower court considered and ruled on numerous motions from Appellant --Petition to Hold, Motion for Indigent Filing and Necessary and Appoint Counsel, Motion to Refuse of Defense and Motion to the Court for Restraint. Many of these motions Respondent feels were frivolous.

Furthermore, Appellant took no steps to file an affidavit of prejudice to disqualify the lower court judge as provided in Rule 63 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

The Utah Supreme Court in reviewing an affidavit of prejudice under Rule 63 in Christensen v. Christensen, 18 Utah 2d 315, 422 P.2d 534 (1967), found that there must be reasonable reasons for the belief that a bias or prejudice exists in order to disqualify the trial judge. In that case, the fact that the trial judge in the divorce action rejected the parties' alimony stipulation without pleading or testimony attacking stipulation was not justification for an affidavit of prejudice and did not require trial judge to transfer case to different judge.

III. Even though Appellant may be incarcerated in the Washington Penal System, he is not entitled to an appointed attorney in civil case.

There is no Constitutional right to appointed counsel in divorce proceedings. The guarantee of the Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution does not extend to civil cases, and the extension of the right to counsel to such semi-criminal cases as juvenile delinquency hearings or hearings on revocation of probation, have involved a right to liberty, as opposed to a matter of purely civil nature. See "Appointment of Counsel for Indigent Husband or Wife in Action for Divorce or Separation", 85 ALR 3d 983-987.

IV. The Appellant's default and the subsequent decree of divorce were properly entered by the lower court.

Although Appellant was personally served with a summons and a copy of Respondent's Complaint on September 16, 1987 in the State of Washington, he never filed an answer to

Respondent's Complaint. Appellant having been served out-of-state have thirty days in which to file his answer as set forth in Section 78-27-26, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended).

Further in accordance with Utah Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 12 upon the service of the following motions: (1) lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3) improper venue, (4) insufficiency of process, (5) insufficiency of service of process, (6) failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, and (7) failure to join an indispensable party after service of complaint, the Defendant has ten days after the lower court's ruling on said motion's to file his answer.

None of the motions filed by Appellant in the lower court fell into the categories set forth in Rule 12 requiring Appellant to be given ten days after the lower court's ruling to file his answer. However, Appellant's default was not entered until after 10 days plus three days service by mailing of the court's memorandum decision of November 16, 1988 ruling on Appellant's motions filed prior to entry of his default.

Most importantly the Appellant's was advised by the lower court in a memorandum decision dated November 16, 1988 that the statute provisions and rules of practice would govern the time limits for responsive pleading and would to be adhered to.

Appellant, who was properly served with a summons and a copy of Respondent's complaint, never filed an answer to

Respondent's complaint within the time limits for filing a responsive pleading under either of the above cited rules.

In addition, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 55 provides it not to be necessary to serve any notice or paper otherwise required by the rules to be served on a party to the action in a default. Certain exceptions are listed the only one applicable to this case is a Entry of Judgment required under Rule 58A(d), which was mailed to Appellant on December 15, 1987 along with a copy of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decree. Although a default hearing was held, the lower court did not conduct the hearing with regard to determining the amount of damages of the non-defaulting party which under Rule 55(a)(2) would have required notice to the Appellant. The divorce decree was entered as prayed for in Respondent's Complaint.

In Heath v. Heath, 541 P.2d 1040 (Utah 1975), the Utah Supreme Court held that a Defendant who failed to file an answer in a divorce action was not entitled to a hearing or notice before entry of the default divorce decree even though the 90-day statutory period had not elapsed.

Further in Holt v. Holt, 672 P.2d 738 (Utah 1983), the Court noted that the relief granted in a judgment by default must not exceed or substantially differ from that sought in the complaint.

V. Appellant improperly requests this Court to consider facts arising after the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce was entered by the lower court.

Appellant requests this Court to consider certain facts set forth in page 2 through 4 line 8 and Page 4 line 2 through Page 5 line 4 of his brief certain fact allegations or changes in the circumstances which Appellant acknowledges have occurred since entry of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce herein.

Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) Section 30-35(3) provides that "the court has continuing jurisdiction to make subsequent changes or new orders for the support and maintenance of the parties, the custody of the children and their support maintenance, health, and dental care, or the distribution of the property as is reasonable and necessary".

Further, Rule 11 of the First Judicial District Court Rules of Practice provides to commence an action to modify the terms of a divorce decree a petition for modification must be filed in the original divorce action with service of a copy of the petition on the party as provided in Rule 4 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

Appellant's request of this Court to consider the facts set forth in page 2 through 4 line 8 and Page 4 line 2 through Page 5 line 4 of his brief should be handled in the lower court by filing a petition for modification in the manner set forth in Rule 11 and not by this Court on appeal.

Furthermore, Rule 11(e)(2) of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals provides that "if the Appellant intends to urge on appeal that a finding or conclusion is unsupported by or is

contrary to the evidence, the appellant shall include in the record a transcript of all evidence relevant to such finding or conclusion". The Appellant is improperly requesting this court to consider facts that occurred after entry of the Decree of Divorce.

VI. Appellant requests this Court to consider facts set forth in his brief not properly present by him prior to entry of the Decree of Divorce.

Appellant alleges in page 4 lines 12 through 20 of his brief the certain community property was hidden from Appellant was secreted at Respondent's parents' home from Appellant and court.

Respondent in her complaint paragraph 10 requested that she be awarded the property in her possession and also the 1972 International Pickup, Chevrolet Station Wagon and Beta Max. The lower court in paragraph 10 of the Decree of Divorce awarded the Respondent said property. The property alleged by Appellant to be secreted at Respondent's parents' home was awarded by the lower court to Respondent based upon her complaint.

Appellant having not filed his answer to Respondent's Complaint within the time limits set forth by statute and the Civil Rules of Procedure, and having his default entered cannot now on appeal set forth facts in his brief not previously properly presented to the lower court nor Respondent, and request this Court to change in the lower court's property settlement on appeal.

Rule 11(e)(2) of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals provides that "if the Appellant intends to urge on appeal that a finding or conclusion is unsupported by or is contrary to the evidence, the appellant shall include in the record a transcript of all evidence relevant to such finding or conclusion". The Appellant has failed to request a transcript and comply with this requirement.

Furthermore when a transcript is not furnished, the reviewing court is constrained to regard the findings and conclusions of the lower court as accurate and hence dispositive there being nothing beyond the Appellant's assertion to test their validity in light of the evidence. See Proudfit v. Proudfit, 598 P.2d 1318 (Utah 1979). Also see Bowman v. Bowman 462 P.2d 156 (Utah 1969), wherein the Utah Supreme Court held that affirmance of the lower court decision was justified where the brief urging reversal made no reference to specific supporting evidence in record other than self-serving assertions subject to dispute and that sufficient admissible, competent and substantial evidence supported judgment awarding property.

VII. Pursuant to Rule 33 of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeal, Respondent is entitled to damages for delay and attorney fees due to Appellant's filing of a frivolous appeal.

In Eames v. Eames, 735 P.2d 395 (Utah App. 1987), the Utah Court of Appeals found a husband's appeal from the divorce court's property division and alimony award was

frivolous, for the purpose of awarding costs and attorney's fees to wife. There was no basis for argument presented and evidence and law was mischaracterized and misstated.

In the present case, Appellant was properly served with a copy of the Respondent's complaint and has never filed an answer to the same. Instead Appellant elected to file numerous motion and petitions in the lower court -- Petition to Hold, Motion for Indigent Filing as Necessary and Appoint Counsel, Motion to Refuse of Defense, Motion to the Court for Restraint, and Motion of Response and Set aside. The latter was never served on Respondent.

On appeal, Appellant has never filed a transcript of the lower court proceedings nor a certificate that he would not be obtaining one as required by Rule 11(e)(1) of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals. Appellant has not done so even though he has been instructed on numerous occasions by this Court on how to obtain a transcript. Further Appellant has been again instructed by the Court of Appeals as well as by the lower court that there is no statutory authority allowing appointment of counsel. (See letter from Court of Appeals Court Clerk dated January 22, 1988, letter from Court of Appeals Court Counsel dated February 10, 1988, and Order on Pending Motions dated February 26, 1988).

Appellant failed to mail copies of his docketing statement to Respondent as required by Rule 21 of the Utah Court of Appeals Rules. In the Order on Pending Motions dated February

26, 1988, noting Appellant's failure to so serve a copy of the docketing statement on Respondent, Appellant was ordered to serve a copy of all documents filed with this Court upon counsel for Respondent and pay all postage for filing documents with this Court and for service on Respondent's Counsel. Appellant disregarded the same and a copy of Appellant's brief was not served on Respondent by Appellant but received from the Court of Appeals with an accompanying letter from Case Manager Janice Hill of Utah Court of Appeals dated June 9, 1988.

Finally, Appellant in his brief page 7 lines 1 through 11 states "Appellant does not wish to appeal the actual divorce and feels that these stipulations would be most satisfactory, and would be happy with this settlement." Appellant is attempting to use the appeal process as a means of delay in implementation of the lower court order. Appellant is asking this court to consider facts alleged to have occurred after the decree was entered (See Argument V above) together with Appellant's proposed property settlement never presented to the lower court (See Argument VI above) and modify the lower court's order accordingly.

Appellant had his opportunity to be heard and failed to file his answer to Respondent's complaint within the time limits prescribed by law. The appeal process can not now be used by Appellant as a means to avoid the Decree of Divorce awarded upon Respondent's complaint, the consequences of Appellant's failure to answer Respondent's complaint.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, Respondent moves the Court of Appeals for an order dismissing Appellant's appeal with prejudice, affirming the lower court's decision, and awarding Respondent her attorney fees, costs and damages herein.